BOARD OF UNION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

REGULAR MEETING
AGENDA
December 9, 2025
9:00 a.m.
1. Call to order
2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Approval of agenda and minutes
4. Hospital Report
5. Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Action Items

9:30 a.m. - Citizens’ Forum
10:00 a.m. - Joint Meeting with Town of Clayton

i.  Union County Fiscal Agent for County Health Council
ii.  Resolution 2026-21 BAR Reserve Fund
iii.  Resolution 2026-22 2026 Holiday Schedule
iv.  Resolution 2026-23 Resolution Recognizing Public Safety Telecommunicators
as First Responders
v.  County Roads Work Session
vi.  Approval of Bills

vii.  Inventory Items Disposition - Road Department International Water Truck
viii. = Healthcare Assistance - Approval of Claims
ix.  County Travel Requests
6. Reports
. County Manager Report
. Road Superintendent
o Emergency Service Coordinator Report

. Elected Officials Reports

Executive Session - Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 10-15-1(H) 2 Limited Personnel Matters
1. Brandy Thompson

Adjourn
As of12/3/2025

Next Meeting - January 13, 2026 @ 9:00



BOARD OF UNION COUNTY COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING
November 10, 2025

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

Chairman Clayton F. Kiesling Commissioner Lloyd ‘Red’ Miller Commissioner Justin Bennett
OTHERS PRESENT:

Clerk Devian Fields Manager Brandy Thompson Road Admin Rachel Farnum Road
Superintendent Gary Wright Sheriff Curtis Skaggs HR Director Cheryl Garcia

Manager Luis de la Cruz

GUESTS:

Tammie Chavez, CEQ Union County General Hospital
Terry Lancaster, CFO Union County General Hospital
Mark Smith, Sedan Fire Chief

At 9:00 a.m., Chairman Kiesling called the meeting to order in the Commission Chambers lacated in the Union
County Administration Building. The pledge of allegiance was recited.

Commissioner Bennett moved to approve the agenda and the regular meeting minutes of September 9, 2025
and October 14, 2025 with amendments. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion.
Vote: ALL AYE. The minutes were signed.

HOSPITAL REPORT

Tammie Chavez, CEQ, reported on statistics for September. The “County Commissioner Monthly Hospital
Report” was distributed to the board prior to the meeting. Items covered and discussed included the
following: Provider Recruitment Update, Financial Assistance, Business/Financial Update, Compliance,
Radiology Report, Plant Services, Therapy Services, Pharmacy, Laboratory/Infection Control, Union County/Des
Moines Health Center, IT and Special Projects.

Terry Lancaster, CFO, reported on financials for October. The “Union County General Consolidated Executive
Financial Summary” and the “Clayton Health Systems September 2025 Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements Period Ending October 31, 2025” was distributed to the board prior to the meeting. ltems covered
and discussed included the following: Key Statistics, Statement of Revenue and Expenses — YTD and Balance

Sheet.

CITIZENS FORUM
No one present.



DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS

CANVASS OF REGULAR LOCAL ELECTION
Clerk Fields presented the board with the 2025 Regular Local Election results, along with the Ballots Cast
Summary, Canvass of Returns and Bucket by Precinct Reports. Clerk Fields reported that the election ran

smoothly.

Commissioner Bennett moved to approve the Canvass of Regular Local Election. Commissioner Miller
seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE.

SEDAN FIRE DEPARTMENT REQUEST FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Mark Smith, Sedan Fire Chief, presented the board with the plans to turn the Sedan Fire Substations into Main
Stations to help increase the funding for the fire department. The board directed Manager Thompson to move
forward with assistance to the Sedan Fire Station projects.

RESOLUTION 2026-20 BAR HEALTH CARE ASSISTANCE INDIGENT COSTS
Manager Thompson presented Resolution 2026-20 BAR Health Care Assistance Indigent Costs.

Commissioner Miller moved to approve Resolution 2026-20 BAR Health Care Assistance Indigent Costs.
Commissioner Bennet seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Resolution was signed.

2026 CAPITAL OUTLAY REQUESTS
Discussion was held on the Capital Outlay Requests. The Board directed Manager Thompson to request the

top 3 for funding.

COUNTY ROADS WITH GATES

Sheriff Skaggs listed some County roads that have been shut or blocked now that hunting season is going on.
Multiple land owners have been contacted about removing the gates. The Board directed Sheriff Skaggs to
make a list of blocked roads so further action can be taken. Discussion was also had on creating a system of
fully maintained and minimally maintained roads.

APPROVAL OF BILLS
Bills in the amount of $267,845.50 were presented for review.

Commissioner Bennett moved to approve bills as presented and to give the county manager authority pay any
outstanding bills. Commissioner Miller seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion

carried.

EXECUTIVE SESSION



At 10:28 a.m., Commissioner Bennett made motion to enter into Executive Session- Pursuant to NMSAS 1987
Section 10-15-1(H)2- Limited Personnel Matters, County Manager Contract — Luis de la Cruz. Commissioner
Miller seconded. Chairman Kiesling request vote. VOTE: Chairmen Kiesling — Aye, Commissioner Bennett —
Aye, Commissioner Miller — Aye.

Commissioner Miller moved to come out of Executive Session at 10:52 a.m., Commissioner Bennett seconded.
Chairman Kiesling request vote. VOTE: Chairman Kiesling AYE; Commissioner Bennett AYE; Commissioner
Miller AYE. Motion carried.

No action was taken.

Regular meeting resumed at 10:53 a.m.

Commissioner Miller moved to approve County Manager Contract — Luis de la Cruz. Commissioner Bennett
seconded. There was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Contract was signed.

INVENTORY ITEMS DISPOSITION — ROAD DEPARTMENT INTERNATIONAL WATER TRUCK
3 M Series CCT 8000-0851-30 Defibrillator Tag #2257, #2258, #2259, Stryker 6500 Power Pro Gurney Tag #
2263, Lifepak 12 Defibrillator Tag # 2265 and 2007 Ford F-450 Ambulance Tag # 2264 were all inventory items

for disposition.
Commissioner Bennett moved to approve Inventory Items Disposition. Commissioner Miller seconded. There

was no further discussion. VOTE: ALL AYE. Motion carried.

HEALTHCARE ASSISTANCE-APPROVAL OF CLAIMS

There were no claims.

COUNTY TRAVEL REQUESTS
Manager Thompson and Chairman Kiesling will be traveling to Tucumcari on December 16" for legislative

update.

COUNTY MANAGER REPORT

Mgr. Thompson reported on information from the Managers retreat she attended. She updated that the
generator project is 14 weeks out. Tyler Technologies contract should be ready to sign soon. CivicPlus is
moving forward. The County audit is finished and will be presented at the next meeting. January 26" will be
the legislative luncheon in Santa Fe. The County will be doing a memorandum of agreement with the public
health office for continued use of the annex building.

ROAD SUPERINTENDENT
Road Superintendent Gary Wright reported he is needing to replace/upgrade some equipment. The board
Directed Manager Thompson to go out for bid on the equipment needed.

EMERGENCY SERVICE COORDINATOR REPORT
No report.



ELECTED OFFICIALS REPORTS
Sheriff Skaggs reported that he is almost complete on updating policies.

ADDITIONAL REPORTS
No Report

Meeting Announcements: The next regular meeting will be held on Tuesday, December 9th, at 9:00 a.m.

Exhibit — Final Agenda

Board of Union County Commissioners
ATTEST Union County, New Mexico

SEAL

Clayton F. Kiesling - Chairman

Devian Fields — County Clerk Justin Bennett - Vice Chairman

Lloyd ‘Red’ Miller - Member



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DCB9-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F g2

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
GRANT AGREEMENT

The Department of Health, Public Health Division, Health Promotion Program hereinafter referred to
as the Department, enters into this Agreement with Union County Health and Wellness Network Inc.
hereinafter referred to as the Provider. The effective date is upon approval of both parties, whichever is

later.

THE PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE:

ARTICLE 1.

ARTICLE 2.

ARTICLE 3.
A.

SCOPE OF WORK

The Provider shall perform the work in Attachment A. Scope of Work and is
incorporated into this agreement as if fully set forth herein. Attachment A. Scope of
Work governs Contractor’s production and delivery of the Deliverables to the Procuring
Agency.

LICENSURE

The Provider agrees to retain professional licensure, accreditation, credentialing or
continuing education required to perform the scope of services provided for the
Department. The Provider agrees to make evidence of licensure or other regulatory
requirements for the scope of services available to the Department if requested in writing.

COMPENSATION

The Department shall pay to the Provider in full payment for services satisfactorily
performed based upon deliverables, such compensation not to exceed $67,995.00,
including gross receipts tax if applicable. The total amount payable to the Provider
under this Agreement shall not exceed $67,995.00. This amount is a maximum and
not a guarantee that the work assigned to be performed by Provider under this
Agreement shall equal the amount stated herein. The parties do not intend for the
Provider to continue to provide services without compensation when the total
compensation amount is reached. Provider is responsible for notifying the
Department when the services provided under this Agreement reach the total
compensation amount. In no event will the Provider be paid for services provided in
excess of the total compensation amount without this Agreement being amended in
writing prior to those services in excess of the total compensation amount being
provided.

Payment is subject to availability of funds pursuant to the Appropriations Paragraph set
forth below and to any negotiations between the parties from year to year pursuant to
Article 1, Scope of Work. All invoices MUST BE received by the Department no later
than fifteen (15) days after the termination of the Fiscal Year in which the services were
delivered. Invoices received after such date WILL NOT BEPAID. Invoices shall be
submitted monthly. The Provider shall submit to the Department at the close of
each month a signed invoice reflecting the total allowable costs incurred during the
preceding month. No invoices will be reimbursed unless submitted within thirty (30)
days after the last day of the month in which services were performed.

Page 1
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DCB9-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F 92

ARTICLE 4.

ARTICLE 5.
A.

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

Provider must submit a detailed statement accounting for all services performed and
expenses incurred. If the Agency finds that the services are not acceptable, within thirty
days after the date of receipt of written notice from the Provider that payment is
requested, it shall provide the Provider a letter of exception explaining the defect or
objection to the services and outlining steps the Provider may take to provide remedial
action. Upon certification by the Agency that the services have been received and
accepted, payment shall be tendered to the Provider within thirty days after the date of
acceptance. If payment is made by mail, the payment shall be deemed tendered on the
date it is postmarked. However, the agency shall not incur late charges, interest, or
penalties for failure to make payment within the time specified herein.

TERM

THIS Agreement SHALL NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL APPROVAL OF BOTH
PARTIES, WHICHEVER IS LATER. This Agreement shall terminate on 06/30/2026,
unless terminated pursuant to Article 5 (Termination), infra or Article 6 (Appropriations).

TERMINATION

Grounds. The Department may terminate this Agreement for convenience or cause. The
Provider may only terminate this Agreement based upon the Department’s uncured,
material breach of this Agreement.

Notice: Agency Opportunity to Cure.

1. Except as otherwise provided in Paragraph (5)(B)(3), the Department shall give
Provider written notice of termination at least thirty (30) days prior to the
intended date of termination.

2. Provider shall give Department written notice of termination at least thirty (30)
days prior to the intended date of termination, which notice shall (i) identify all
the Department’s material breaches of this Agreement upon which the
termination is based and (ii) state what the Department must do to cure such
material breaches. Provider’s notice of termination shall only be effective (i) if
the Department does not cure all material breaches within the thirty (30) day
notice period or (ii) in the case of material breaches that cannot be cured within
thirty (30) days, the Department does not, within the thirty (30) day notice
period, notify the Provider of its intent to cure and begin with due diligence to
cure the material breach.

3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be terminated immediately
upon written notice to the Provider (i) if the Provider becomes unable to perform
the services contracted for, as determined by the Department; (ii) if, during the
term of this Agreement, the Provider is suspended or debarred by the State
Purchasing Agent; or (iii) the Agreement is terminated pursuant to Paragraph 6,
“Appropriations”, of this Agreement.

Liability. Except as otherwise expressly allowed or provided under this Agreement, the
Department’s sole liability upon termination shall be to pay for acceptable work
performed prior to the Provider’s receipt or issuance of a notice of termination; provided,
however, that a notice of termination shall not nullify or otherwise affect either patty’s
liability for pre-termination defaults under or breaches of this Agreement. The Provider

Page 2
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-SEEA-C37546D84F92

ARTICLE 6.

ARTICLE 7,

ARTICLE 8.

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

shall submit an invoice for such work within thirty (30) days of receiving or sending the
notice of termination. THLS PROVISION IS NOT EXCLUSIVE AND DOES NOT WAIVE
THE DEPARTMENT’S OTHER LEGAL RIGHTS AND REMEDIES CAUSED BY THE
PROVIDER'S DEFAULT/BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT.

Termination Management. If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to its provisions, or if
the parties mutually agree to discontinue their contractual relationship, or upon expiration
of the term of the Agreement, immediately upon receipt by either the Department or the
Provider of written notice of termination, the Provider shall: 1)not incur any further
obligations for salaries, services or any other expenditures of funds under this Agreement
without the written approval of the Department; 2) continue to provide essential services
and supports to ensure the health and safety of individual clients as directed by the
Department during the period of termination management; This requirement is not avoided
by an inadvertent expiration of term for the Agreement. In this event the Department may
temporarily extend the term, enter into a new short term contract or otherwise enter into an
Agreement, consistent with the New Mexico Procurement Code until all transition of
services are completed; 3) comply with all directives issued by the Department in the
notice of termination as to the performance of work under this Agreement; 4) take such
action as the Department shall direct for the protection, preservation, retention or transfer
of all property titled to the Department and client records generated under this Agreement
on the date of termination of this Agreement, the Provider shall furnish to the
Department: (a) a complete detailed inventory of nonexpendable Department property
and (b) a final closing of the financial records and books of accounts which were required
to be kept by the Provider under the provision of this Agreement regarding financial
records.

APPROPRIATIONS

The performance of this Agreement is subject to the condition precedent that sufficient
funds are appropriated, authorized, and allocated by the Legislature of the State of New
Mexico and/or by the federal government. If sufficient appropriations, authorizations,
and allocations are not made by the Legislature of the State of New Mexico and/or by the
federal government, necessitating a decrease in the amount of Agreement funds available
for expenditure by the Department, this Agreement may be terminated or amended to a
lower amount of funds upon written notice given by the Department to the Provider. If
the Department proposes an amendment to unilaterally reduce Agreement funding, the
Provider shall have the option to terminate the Agreement or to agree to the reduced
funding, within thirty (30) days of receipt of the proposed amendment.

The decision of the Department as to the amount of Agreement funds available for
expenditure from the appropriation, authorization and/or allocation shall be final and
binding on the Provider.

ASSIGNMENT

The Provider shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement or assign any
claims for money due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior written
approval of the Department. This Agreement is binding on the Provider, its successors or
transferees.

RECORDS AND FINANCIAL AUDIT

Page 3
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-SEEA-C37546D84F92

ARTICLE 9.

ARTICLE 10.

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

The Provider shall maintain detailed time and expenditure records, which indicate the
date, time, nature, and cost of services rendered during the Agreement term and retain
them for a period of three (3) years from the date of final payment under the Agreement.
The records shall be subject to inspection by the Department, the Department of Finance
and Administration and the State Auditor. The Department shall have the right to audit
billings both before and after payment; payment under this Agreement shall not foreclose
the right of the Department to recover excessive or illegal payments.

The Provider receiving state or federal funds from the Department shall comply, if
applicable, with auditing requirements under the Single Audit Act (31 U.S.C. §7501, et
seq.) and the New Mexico State Auditor's rules and regulations. This includes the
Contractor retaining its financial records for a period five years after the time the audit
was released.

If the Provider receives more than $750,000 under this Agreement or more than $750,000
in any single fiscal year, from the Department, the Provider shall prepare annual financial
statements and obtain an audit of, or an opinion on, the financial statements from an
external Certified Public Accountant.

The Provider shall maintain the financial statements for a period of no less than six years
and shall make the financial statements and the CPA’s audit or opinion available to the
Department upon request.

Applicable annual financial reports shall be submitted to the Department no later than six
months following the close of the Provider’s fiscal year.

To ensure proper delivery and receipt, the Provider shall submit their annual audit report
or financial reports if no audit was required to:

Department of Health

Financial Accounting Bureau Suite N-3150
P.O. Box 26110

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502-6110

The Department may take corrective action as deemed necessary for Provider’s failure to
comply with 8-A through 8-F above. Corrective action may include, but is not limited to,
termination of Agreement and preclusion from engaging Provider in the future.

CLIENT RECORDS AND CONFIDENTIALITY

The Provider shall maintain complete client records for the benefit of clients, sufficient to
fulfill the provisions of the Scope of Work, and to document the services rendered under
the Scope of Work. Such records shall be available for inspection by the Department of
Health and its designees.

RELEASE

The Provider, upon final payment of the amount due under this Agreement, releases the
Department, its officers and employees, and the State of New Mexico from all liabilities,
claims and obligations whatsoever arising from or under this Agreement. The Provider
agrees not to purport to bind the State of New Mexico to all obligations not assumed

Page 4
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-SEEA-C37546D84F92

ARTICLE 11.

ARTICLE 12,

ARTICLE 13.

ARTICLE 14.
A.

ARTICLE 15.

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

herein by the State of New Mexico, unless the Provider has express written authority to
do so, and then only within the strict limitations of that authority, provided that Provider
may perform assigned duties within the scope of work that does not contractually bind
the State of New Mexico.

LIABILITY

The parties to this Agreement shall maintain professional or general liability insurance, as
required, for all services provided under this Agreement and shall supply evidence of
such coverage upon the Department’s request. The Provider shall defend, indemnify and
hold harmless the Department from all actions, proceedings, claims, demands, costs,
damages, attorney's fees and all other liabilities and expenses of any kind from any
source which may arise out of the performance of this Agreement, if caused by the
negligent or tortuous act or failure to act of Provider, its officer, employees, servants, or
agents, or if caused by actions of any client resulting in injury or damage to the person or
property of another person during any time when the Provider or any officer, employee,
agent, servant, or sub-Provider thereof has undertaken or is furnishing the care and
services called for under this Agreement.

STATUS OF PROVIDER

The Provider, its agents and employees, are independent Providers performing
professional services for the Department and are not employees of the Department. The
Provider, and its agents and employees, shall not be deemed employees for any purpose
within the meaning or application of any federal or state unemployment or insurance laws
or workers compensation laws or otherwise. Provider, its agents and employees shall not
be entitled to any of the benefits afforded employees of the Department including but not
limited to accruing leave, retirement, insurance, bonding, use of state property or state
vehicles, or any consideration not specified in this Agreement. The Provider
acknowledges that all sums received hereunder are personally reportable by it for income tax
purposes as self-employment or business income and are reportable for self-employment tax.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Provider represents and warrants that it presently has no interest, and during the term
of this Agreement shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict
in any manner or degree with the performance of services required under this Agreement.

AMENDMENT

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed or amended except by instrument in writing
executed by the parties hereto and all other required signatories. From time to time and in
accordance with changes in State and Department policy, this Agreement shall be
amended to comport with current policy, rules, regulations and law.

If the Department proposes an amendment to the Agreement to unilaterally reduce
funding due to budget or other considerations, the Provider shall, within thirty (30) days
of receipt of the proposed Amendment, have the option to terminate the Agreement
pursuant to the termination provisions as set forth in Article 5 herein, or to agree to the
reduced funding.

MERGER

Page 5
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

ARTICLE 16.
A.

ARTICLE 17.

ARTICLE 18.

ARTICLE 19.

ARTICLE 20.

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

This Agreement incorporates all the terms, covenants and understandings between the
parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such covenants, terms, and
understandings have been merged into this written Agreement. No prior Agreement or
understandings, verbal or otherwise, of the parties or their agents shall be valid or
enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement. All attachments are incorporated and
made a part of this Agreement.

NON-DISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY COMPLIANCE

The Provider hereby agrees to comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C.
2000d, et seq.), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 1681, et seq.),
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794, et seq.), Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. 6101, et seq.), the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12150, et seq.) and all other applicable federal and state laws and
regulations. These laws and regulations prohibit discrimination on the grounds of race,
color, national origin, sex, age, handicap or disability.

The Provider agrees to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and
executive orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal
employment opportunity. In accordance with all such laws of the State of New Mexico,
the Provider assures that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race,
religion, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, physical or mental handicap, ot serious
medical condition, spousal affiliation, sexual orientation or gender identity, be excluded
from employment with or participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity performed under this
Agreement. If Provider is found not to be in compliance with these requirements during
the life of this Agreement Provider agrees to take appropriate steps to correct these
deficiencies.

APPLICABLE LAW

The laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect
to its choice of law provisions. Venue shall be proper only in a New Mexico court of
competent jurisdiction in accordance with NMSA 1978 Section 38-3-1(G). By execution
of this Agreement, Provider acknowledges and agrees to the jurisdiction of the courts of
the State of New Mexico over any and all lawsuits arising under or out of any term of this
Agreement. The parties agree to abide by all state and federal laws and regulations.

AUTHORITY

If Provider is other than a natural person, the individual(s) signing this Agreement on
behalf of Provider represent and warrant that he or she has the power and authority to
bind Provider, and that no further action, resolution, or approval from Provider is
necessary to enter into a binding Agreement.

NON —WAIVER

The failure of a party to insist upon strict adherence to any provision of this Agreement
on any occasion shall not be considered a waiver or deprive that party of the right
thereafter to that term or any other provision of this Agreement.

NOTICES

Page 6
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DCB89-9496-4D06-SEEA-C37546D84F92

ARTICLE 21.

ARTICLE 22.

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

Any notice required to be given by this Agreement will be in writing and will be
delivered in person, by electronic facsimile, by courier service or by U.S. mail, either first
class or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows:

To the Agency:

Rebekah West

New Mexico Department of Health
P.O. Box 26110

1190 St. Francis Drive,

Santa Fe, NM 87502-6110
856-535-1589

rebekah.west@doh.nm.gov

To the Contractor:

Kristen Christy

Union County Health and Wellness Network, Inc.
P.O. Box 444

Clayton, NM 88415

575-779-7746

kchristy@nen-nm.org

INVALID TERM OR CONDITION
If any term or condition of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable, the
remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected and shall be valid and enforceable.

ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT

A party's failure to require strict performance of any provision of this Agreement shall
not waive or diminish that party's right thereafter to demand strict compliance with that
or any other provision. No waiver by a party of any of its rights under this Agreement
shall be effective unless express and in writing, and no effective waiver by a party of any
of its rights shall be effective to waive any other rights.

Page 7
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement at Santa Fe, New
Mexico. The effective date is upon approval of both parties, whichever is later.

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
DEPA F0F HEALTH:
By: Miranda Duwrdam

Authorized giéﬁgﬁii‘c Designee

Date: Aug 6, 2025 | 6:18 PM MDT

PROVIDER: Union County Health and Wellness Network, Inc.
e Date: Aug 5, 2025 | 2:48 PM MDT

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

DocuSigned by:

Slawnee Komo Date:  Aug 6, 2025 | 3:20 PM MDT

Department o Ticalth
Chief Financial Officer or Designee

By:

CERTI AR LEGAL SUFFICIENCY':
‘ fo Aug 6, 2025 | 3:08 PM MDT

Waigld
By: i B
Department of i]ealth
Assistant General Counsel

Date:

TAXATION AND REVENUE DEPARTMENT:
The Provider is registered for the payment of gross receipts taxes to the State of New Mexico.

wlant (were

AERB2D0AESTAAA

Aug 6, 2025 | 3:02 PM MDT

N.M. Tr-ldmiﬁmt.ion #: 03-223958-000
[l Date:

By:

Page 8
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Summary of scope

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

Attachment A
Scope of work

The Department of Health, Public Health Division, Health Promotion Program, hereinafter referred to as
the Department, enters into this agreement with Health Councils (HC) and Tribal Health Councils (THC), hereinafter
referred to as Health Councils. The effective date is upon approval of both parties, whichever is later. This Scope of
Work is not to exceed $67,995.00.

Section 1: Health Council Operations and Administration

Additionally, participate and engage in the Behavioral
Health Reform and Investment Act regional
behavioral health meetings and regional behavioral
health plans coordinated by the Health Care Authority
and/or Administrative Office of the Courts, including
providing substantive expertise in the development of
relevant portions of the regional plans as a behavioral
health stakeholder as defined in the Behavioral Health
Reform and Investment Act.

ii. lanuary 10, 2026
iii. April 10, 2026
iv. June 10, 2026

Deliverable Documentation Budget
1.1. Report on I Submission of New Mexico Department of Health NMDOH Quarterly
Health Council (NMDOH) Quarterly Report by: Reports @
operations. i October 10, 2025 $2,505.00/ea.
ii. January 10, 2026
ii.  April 10,2026
iv. June 10, 2026 Not to exceed
L. Submission of: $10,020.00
1. Organizational structure document. {i.e.,
Bylaws, Organizational Chart, etc.)
2. Fiscal Year 2026 Staffing Plan
3. Health Council Member Roster
4, Updated Health Council Factsheet
5. Monthly Health Council meeting minutes
and/or agendas
1. Set schedule with the Health Promotion Team (HPT) and
attend regular monthly technical assistance meetings
with HPT,
Total $10,020.00
Section 2: Health Council Partnership and Collaboration on Behavioral Health
Deliverable Documentation Budget
2.1. Report on Health Council’s work to address and . Submission of NMDOH NMDOH
improve behavioral health, including collaborating Quarterly Report by: Quarterly
with behavioral health key partners. i. October 10, 2025 Reports @

$8,500.00/ea.

Not to exceed
$34,000.00

2.2. Complete an assessment of your Health Council in
partnership with the Department, measuring capacity,
actions, responsibilities, community needs, and
feasibility to transition to local behavioral health
support pursuant to the Behavioral Health Reform

Completion of Health Council
assessment. Template and
guidance to be provided by
the Department.

Report on progress of

NMDOH
Quarterly
Reports @
$1,000.00/ea.

Page 9

Rev 04/2024




Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Grant Awardee Number; 26 665 2008 00140

and Investment Act. assessment through NMDOH | Not to exceed
Quarterly Report. $4,000.00
Total $38,000.00

Section 3; Health Council Work on Initiatives to address Behavioral Health

Deliverable Documentation Budget
Research and identify strategies to create a work i Submission of work $5,000.00 upon
plan for your Health Council, outlining how you will plan for behavioral submission of
address behavioral health utilizing the following health initiatives by dacumentation.
initiative areas: Paths to Health, mobile units, October 10, 2025.
nicotine misuse prevention, harm reduction, suicide Not to exceed
prevention trainings, SBIRT, 988, gunlocks, MOUD, or $5,000.00

other Health Council identified behavioral health
initiatives.

Once initiatives are identified from Addendum A, @
contract amendment including an updated scope of
work and budget table will be completed.

Total 5$5,000.00

Page 10
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

Section 4: Health Council Engagement and Community Health Improvement Plans (CHIP)

Deliverable Documentation Budget
4.1. Update and revise CHIP Plan as I Updated version of Health Council’s NMDOH Quarterly
needed for the fiscal year and complete CHIP Reports @

quarterly CHIP progress report that
includes Key Performance Indicators as
outlined on approved Health Council
CHIP.

Submission of NMDOH Quarterly
Report by:
i QOctober 10, 2025
ii. January 10, 2026
iil. April 10, 2026
iv. June 10, 2026

$1,900.00/ea.

Not to exceed
$7,600.00

4.2. Educate and engage local
government and community in the work
and activities of the Health Council.
Including hosting a community wide
engagement forum to discuss the work
of the Health Council.

Copy of document stating your

jurisdiction’s recognition of your

Health Council as written in the NM

County and Tribal Health Council Act.

1. Passed Resolution in the last 5
years. For Tribal Health Councils,
a letter of support will be
accepted.

2. Copy of agenda and/or
presentation given to local
jurisdiction.

3. Copy of forum invite, list of
participants that attended the
engagement forum, agenda and
minutes, and any materials
shared.

$7,200.00 upon
submission of all
documentation.

Not to exceed
57,200.00

4.3. Completion of the yearly Health
Council Impact Survey.

Submission of NMDOH Health Council
Impact Survey by October 10, 2025

$175.00 upon
submission of Health
Council Impact
Survey,

Not to exceed

$175.00
Total $14,975.00
Grand Total $67,995.00

Addendum A

Section 3 Guidance

Page 11

Rev 04/2024




Dacusign Envelope ID: D6D3DCB89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546DB4F92

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

Below are examples and guidance of what is considered promotion & connection, facilitation, and implementation
of needed and effective projects or programs for the Fiscal Year 2026 Health Council Scope of Work under section
3. Activities are not limited to what is listed below. A Health Council is empowered to create strategies outside of
those listed below, other identified and evidence-based strategies or projects identified by the Health Councils are
to be approved by the Department. Health Councils will report on activities in each of the areas of action through
the quarterly report provided by NMDOH. An overview of the questions and requested information to show
fulfillment of deliverables will be provided by the Department at the beginning of the fiscal year. Health Councils
cannot report or bill the same activities to multiple New Mexico Department of Health contracts. Health Councils
can choose the same initiative for this Scope of Work as other New Mexico Department of Health contracts, as
long as different activities and projects are completed.

The maximum billable amount for this section is $40,000.00 to be invoiced quarterly; this can be met in whatever
way a Health Council chooses. Funding will be tiered based on levels of work completed toward each initiative. A
Health Council is not required to work on all three tiers of selected initiatives. The Health Council’s FY26 contract
will be amended to include a work plan and any changes in the scope of work.

NICOTINE USE AND PREVENTION / NUPAC

Promotion & Connection ($1,000.00 max) Facilitation ($4,000.00 max) Implementation of needed and
effective projects or programs
($15,000.00 max)

Actively promote use of 1-800-QUIT-NOW | Host presentations and facilitate - Work with local school
line or other cessation materials and  [evidence-based trainings on nicotine districts to implement
resources. Engage at risk individuals and [and/or tobacco use and prevention. evidence-based prevention
tailor promotional materials, resources, Identifying and engaging at risk and cessation programs for
and engagement to increase your individuals using relevant and students to avert and
community's knowledge of the harms of tailored trainings to decrease decrease youth nicotine
nicotine and/or tobacco misuse and nicotine and/or tobacco misuse, and/or tobacco use.
available cessation resources. - Woaork on the research,

creation, and adoption of
policies that create nicotine
and/or tobacco free
environments.

PATHS TO HEALTH

Promotion & Connection Facilitation ($4,000.00 max) Implementation of needed and
($1,000.00 max) effective projects or
programs ($15,000.00 max)
Actively recruit for and Host events and connect Paths to Health to [ Work with Paths to Health Program to
promote Paths to Health organizations or individuals that can become or identify a certified trainer
classes and services. implement Paths to Health classes in your | for a Paths to Health and hold classes
Engaging individuals in community to increase the number of to increase chronic disease prevention
connection to Paths to Health |individuals engaging with Paths to Health and and management access.
to increase the knowledge of preventing/managing chronic disease.
Paths to Health and make
impactful change to chronic
disease prevention and
management.

Page 12
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID; D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

NMDOH MOBILE UNITS

Promotion & Connection ($1,000.00
max)

Facilitation ($4,000.00 max) Implementation of needed and effective
projects or programs (515,000.00 max)

Actively promote already occurring
mobile unit events in your community.

in the area where the event will be to

ensure individuals are aware of the
event’s offerings to increase individuals'
ability to access care.

with the Department to not currently available through the
Engaging with individuals who live/work| organize and host mobile unit | Department mobile units and work with the
events to increase access to Department to bring those services to
healthcare services. impactfully close gaps and increase access to
Please note that due to the needed care.

Identify locations and work | Identify needs in your community that are

new funding for the mobile
units program, there will not
be dedicated staffing until
November 2025.

HARM REDUCTION

Promotion & Connection ($1,000.00
max)

Facilitation ($4,000.00 max) Implementation of heeded and
effective projects or
programs ($15,000.00 max)

Identify and promote Naloxone and harm
reduction trainings and events occurring.
Promoting and engaging in the process
to increase the prevalence of Naloxone
and other harm reduction resources.

Host Naloxone or harm reduction - Research and bring evidence-
trainings. Engage high risk based harm reduction projects
populations using relevant and to increase access, decrease
tailored trainings to decrease the stigma, or address a gap in
number of overdose deaths. services.

- Work on the research, creation,
and adoption of policies
to impact systems level change
around harm reduction.

SUICIDE PREVENTION TRAININGS

Promotion & Connection ($1,000.00|Facilitation ($4,000.00 max) |Implementation of needed and effective projects
max) or programs (515,000.00 max)
- Identify and promote suicide Host evidence-based suicide - Identify and implement new and/or
prevention trainings and events prevention trainings, tailor current evidence-based trainings or
occurring. Tailor promotional trainings to engage and programs to address mental health
materials to address stigma around | effectively help identified through a new approach to decrease
mental health and increase populations to decrease stigma around accessing mental health
individuals seeking mental health suicide rates. services and decrease suicide rates.
support. - Waork with local law enforcement
agencies to implement trainings on
mental health and suicide prevention.

- Work on the research, creation and
adoption of mental health and suicide
prevention policies to impact systems
level change on the mental health care
system.

988 CRISIS LINE
Promotion & Connection Facilitation (54,000.00 max) Implementation of needed and effective projects or

{$1,000.00 max)

programs ($15,000.00 max)

Page 13
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC89-9496-4

DO6-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Grant Awardee Number: 26 665 2008 00140

- Identify and tailor
promotional materials for
your community. Actively
promote 988 to increase

awareness.

Host 988 presentations and -
trainings, identifying key groups
that should know about 988,
increasing the number of
individuals utilizing 988.

Work to bring mobile mental health crisis
teams in alignment with the 988 program to
decrease the burden on law enforcement and
increase the effectiveness of response to
mental health crisis events.

Work on the research, creation, and adoption
of crisis response solutions and policies that
impact your community.

Screening, Brief Intervention, and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT)

Promotion & Connection
($1,000.00 max)

Facilitation (S4,000.00 max)

Implementation of needed and effective
projects or programs {$15,000.00 max)

Promote and engage
individuals in
E-SBIRT, promoting and
engaging in the process to
increase the number of
individuals engaging with
the E-SBIRT tool.

Host SBIRT trainings, identifying
organizations and providers to train in SBIRT
to increase the number of
individuals/organizations using SBIRT to
improve access to care for substance use.

Collaborate with the New Mexico
Department of Health Office of Alcohol
Misuse Prevention to identify and implement
new SBIRT awareness campaigns tailored to
improve access to care for substance use.

GUNLOCKS

Promotion & Connection (51,000.00 max)

Facilitation ($4,000.00 max)

Implementation of needed and effective
projects or programs ($15,000.00 max)

Distribute gunlocks an

materials, identifying locations and
populations to focus promotion, distribution
and education to increase gun safety
knowledge.

d gun safety

Host gunlock and gun safety -
trainings tailored to your
community to decrease
incidences of gun violence. -

Identify and implement new gun
safety awareness campaigns
tailored to your community.
Work on the research, creation,
and adoption of gun safety
policies that will impact your
community.

MEDICATIONS FOR OPIOID USE DISORDER {MOUD)

Promotion & Connection ($1,000.00 max)

Facilitation ($4,000.00 max)

Implementation of needed
and effective projects or
programs {$15,000.00 max)

Identify and promote the availability of -
MOUD, engaging with MOUD providers,
organizations, and individuals on how and

Host evidence-based trainings to
reduce stigma around accessing
substance use treatment.

Develop and work on
continuum of care for MOUD
services.

where to access MOUD services.

Facilitate community
collaboration to discuss MOUD to
assess needs, resources, and
bridge gaps in care.

OTHER IDENTIFIED BEHAVIORAL HEALTH NEED

Implementation of New Projects or Programs (Not to exceed $40,000.00)

Page 14

Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Grant Awardee Numher: 26 665 2008 00140

Identify, implement, and promote effective evidence-based strategies approved by the Department to address an
identified and proven behavioral health need that will result in positive community impact and outcomes on
behavioral health. Examples include but are not [imited to: HIPAA compliant telehealth pods, transportation services
for community members to access behavioral health needs, etc.

Selecting this initiative will require a contract amendment.
The Department and the Health Council will work together to develop o work plan for the project or program.

Page 15
Rev 04/2024



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

NMHealth

PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION Gina DeBlassie
Cabinet Secretary

Michelle Lujan Grisham
Governor

New Mexico Department of Health

Date: 6/18/2025

Agency 66500

Supplier name: Union County Network Inc
Supplier number: 93959

SHARE Billing Location: 56

SHARE Ship to Location: 56

Department Code: 2008

Contract Type: GRANT AGREEMENT

This funding string below is being provided as certification that funds have been set aside for the proposed contract
for ASD contract staff to create the purchase order and Contract Module.

Total compensation of Contract: $67,995.00

Brief description of Service: Health Council training and organization to develop strategies for community, capacity
development for Health Councils.

Complete necessary fields per your budgetary requirements. Add rows as needed. Must have total of all funding
sources.

Split funding: No or Yes (if yes, you can submit a separate sheet detailing how PO is to be split, example would be
line one to be split with line 2).

Note: If contract crosses fiscal years only include the amounts for the current fiscal year purchase order.

Merchandise Sub | Rpt PC Bus Oper Bud
Fund Dept *A t P t | Activit Class

Amount ik 2 G Acct | Cat Unit ralnc b Unit Ref
$14,975.00 06101 | 2008002000 126 | JOO0O

$53,020.00 06100 92524
Z)5190 15190

Highlight ONE Below, if no PO will be processed.

Direct Pay/Policy Exemption
OPR
Non-Monetary

Approved by Authorized Funding Department:
Approved By: Signature: Date:
(type in name/title of individual)

Marie Velasco, Statewide Health Promotion Manager E : : : 06/18/2025

/ Fd

PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION | NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
1190 St. Francis Dr., Suite 1050 « P.O. Box 26110 - Santa Fe, New Mexico « 87502




Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Fram: determination. sod, GSD

To: Qutiz, Michelle A,_DOH

Subject: RE: SPD Determination Health Council Project Manager Position revised
Date: Thursday, June 26, 2025 11:10:27 AM

Attachmants: Image00L.ong

Good marning Michelle,

This scope of work is written as PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. Please note this determination relates only to that question and is no
comment on whether the scope of work or procurement method meet all legal standards. Therefore, the agency may conduct the
procurement independently of the State Purchasing Division (SPD). Any resulting contract(s) and amendment(s) must be
processed through the Contracts Review Bureau (CRB) of SPD. Both CRB and SPD reserve the right to change this determination if
the contract scope of work differs from the scope of work submitted for the original determination orif a later attached scope of

work should contain goods or general services,

® While this scope of work has been determined to be professional services, please check the Horizons website to determine

whether the scope of work must be offered to Horizons for their right of first refusal.

® When processing this procurement, please ensure that the Contracts Review Bureau contract template (or the DolT contract

template if IT related) is used.

® \When processing this procurement, please ensure that the CRB contract numbering system is used.

Sincerely,

Delilah Tenorio

Attorney

State Purchasing Division

Phone: (505)372-9508

Email:  delilah tenorin@gsd.nm.gov

From: Ortiz, Michelle A, DOH <MichelleA.Ortiz@doh,nm.gov=
Sent: Wednesday, June 25, 2025 7:43 FM

To: determination, spd, GSD <spd.determination@gsd.nm.gov=
Subject: RE: SPD Determination Health Council Project Manager Position revised

Hi,

May | have a new determination. There had to be revisions.

Thank you

The Department of Health, Public Health Division, Health Promotion Program, hereinafter referred to as the Department, enters
into this agreement with Health Councils (HC) and Tribal Health Councils (THC), hereinafter referred to as Health Councils. The
effective date is upon approval of both parties, whichever is later. This Scope of Work is not to exceed $67,995.00.

Section 1: Health Council Operations and Administration

Deliverable

Documentation

1.1. Report on Health Council operations.

I. Submission of New Mexico Department of
Health (NMDOH) Quarterly Report by:

I.
ii.
iil.
iv.

October 10, 2025
January 10, 2026
April 10, 2026
June 10, 2026

Il. Submission of:

1.

;oA WM

Organizational structure document.
(i.e., Bylaws, Organizational Chart,
etc.)

. Fiscal Year 2026 Staffing Plan
. Health Council Member Roster
. Updated Health Council Factsheet

Monthly Health Council mesting




Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

minutes and/or agendas
Set schedule with the Health Promoticn
Team {HPFT) and attend regular monthly
technical assistance meetings with HPT.

1.

Total

Section 2: Health Council Partnership and Collaboration on Behavioral Health

Deliverable

Documentation

2.1. Report on Health Council’s work to address
and improve behavioral health, including
collaborating with behavioral health key partners.

Additionally, participate and engage in the
Behavioral Health Reform and Investment Act
regional behavioral health meetings and regional
behavioral health plans coordinated by the Health
Care Authority and/or Administrative Office of the
Courts, including providing substantive expertise in
the development of relevant portions of the regional
plans as a behavioral health stakeholder as defined
in the Behavioral Health Reform and Investment
Act.

I. Submission of NMDOH Quarterly Report
by:

i. October10, 2025

li. January 10, 2026

jl. April10, 2026

v. June 10, 2026

2.2. Complete an assessment of your Health
Councilin partnership with the Department,
measuring capacity, actions, responsibilities,
community needs, and feasibility to transition to
local behavioral health support pursuant to the
Behavioral Health Reform and Investment Act.

I. Completion of Health Council assessment.
Template and guidance to be provided by
the Department.

Il. Reporton progress of assessment through
NMDOH Quarterly Report.

Total

Section 3: Health Council Wark on Initiatives to address Behavioral Health

Deliverable

Documentation

Research and identify strategies to create a work
plan for your Health Council, outlining how you will
address behavioral health utilizing the following
initiative areas: Paths to Health, mobile units,
nicotine misuse prevention, harm reduction,
suicide prevention trainings, SBIRT, 988, gunlocks,
MOUD, or other Health Council identified
behavioral health initiatives.

Once initiatives are identified from Addendum A, a
contract amendment including an updated scope
of work and budget table will be completed.

i. Submission of work plan for behavioral
health initiatives by October 10, 2025,

Total

Section 4: Health Council Engagement and Community Health Improvement Plans (CHIP)

Deliverable

Documentation

4.1. Update and revise CHIP Plan as needed for the
fiscal year and complete quarterly CHIP progress
report that includes Key Performance Indicators as
outlined on approved Health Council CHIP.

I. Updated version of Health Council’s CHIP
II. Submission of NMDOH Quarterly Report
by:
i. October 10, 2025
ii. January 10,2026
iii. April10, 2026
iv. June 10,2026

4.2. Educate and engage local government and
community in the work and activities of the Health
Council. Including hosting a community wide

I. Copy of document stating your
jurisdiction’s recognition of your Health
Council as written in the NM County and




Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

engagement forum to discuss the work of the Tribal Health Council Act.

Health Council. 1. Passed Resolution in the last 5 years.
For Tribal Health Councils, a letter of
support will be accepted.

2. Copy of agenda and/or presentation
given to local jurisdiction.

3. Copy of forum invite, list of participants
that attended the engagement forum,
agenda and minutes, and any materials

shared.
4.3. Completion of the yearly Health Council I. Submission of NMDOH Health Council
Impact Survey. Impact Survey by October 10, 2025

Total

Michelle A. Ortiz
Contracts Manager - Center for Public Health Operations and Center for Health Protection

Public Health Division
New Mexico Department of Health

ph: (505) 570-7876

NMHealth  emai ncheleaoiz@donim gov

Eagabgok | X | Linkadin | Instagram | Youlube
Working with New Mexicans to become the healthiest state by 2040.

This e-mall and any documents aceompanying this a-mail transmission contain infarmation that is privileged, confidential, and
preprietary, which is intendad only for the use of the individual named as the recipient of this message. Any disclosure, copying,
distribution, or use of this Information by any persen other than tha intended racipient is strictly prohibited. If you have received this
amail in efrer, please eantac! the sander and advise the sender of the error in transmission, and immediately delete the copy that
you received,

From: Mendonca, Dorothy, GSD <dorothv. mendonca@gsd.nm.gov> On Behalf Of determination, spd, GSD
Sent: Monday, June 9, 2025 2:27 PM

To: Ortiz, Michelle A, DOH <MichelleA Ortiz @doh nm.gov=

Subject: RE: SPD Determination Health Council Project Manager Position

Hello,

The scope of work as written would be PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. Please note this determination relates only to that
question and is no comment on whether the scope of work or procurement method meet all legal standards. Therefore, the
agency may conduct the procurement independently of the State Purchasing Division (SPD). Any resulting contract(s) and
amendment(s) must be processed through the Contracts Review Bureau (CRB) of SPD. Both CRB and SPD reserve the right to
change this determination if the contract scope of work differs from the scope of work submitted for the original determination
or if a later attached scope of work should contain goods or general services.

& While this scope of work has been determined to be professional services, please check the Horizons website to determine
whether the scope of work must be offered to Horizons for their right of first refusal.

® When processing this procurement, please ensure that the Contracts Review Bureau contract template (or the DoIT
contract template if IT related) is used.

e When processing this procurement, please ensure that the Contracts Review Bureau contract numbering system is used.

Thank you for submitting this scope of work for review.

Respectfully,

Dorothy Mendonca
State Purchasing Agent/Director
General Services Depariment



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

505-819-7055

Email: dorothy.mendonca@gsd nm.goey

From: Ortiz, Michelle A, DOH <Michelle iz do >
Sent: Sunday, June 8, 2025 6:37 PM

To: determination, spd, GSD <spd.determination@gsd.nm.govs

Subject: SPD Determination Health Council Project Manager Position
Goad afternoon,
Please provide a determination. Thank you

Health Council Project Manager:
Contract Position for Public Health Division, Center for Access and Linkage to Health Care, Statewide Health Promotion Program.
Position Overview:
The purpose of this position is to support the development of a system wide implementation and management of the Health
Council Legislative and State General Funding. Work with Health Councils and New Mexico Department of Health to ensure
alignment with Health Promotion Scope of Work.
Reporting Structure:
This position will lead NM DOH’s work with Health Councils but under the overall guidance and direction of the NM DOH Statewide
Health Promotion Program Manager. This Project Managar will report directly to the Statewide Health Promotion Program
Manager.
Responsibilities:
This position is responsible for building and maintaining relationships with and ensuring comprehensive work with Health Councils
to include any work related to the administrative and operational work for the Health Councils Legislative and General Funds.
The Project Manager responsibilities will include the following:
® Serve asthe NM DOH lead in the agency on Health Councils and related work of Health Councils.
® Streamline statewide health council and health promotion communications. Including DOH announcements, health council
resources, and filing system.
Assist in developing and maintaining reporting systems for health councils.
¢ Help develop data analysis system for evaluating measurables, outcomes, and metrics from the reports.
® Assistin tracking health council spend down across regions on a quarterly basis to ensure all legislative money is being
spent.
® Assistin the development of a contingency plan for additional deliverables if spend down is not being completed.
® Support State of New Mexico Health Promotion Team members working to support statewide Health Councils.
& Monitor program performance and outcomes, implementing necessary improvements to align goals set by the Statewide
Health Promaotion Program Manager. '
Ideal Candidate:
® Minimum Bachelor's degree in related field.
Two years' experience using data analysis software.
Ability to assess partner and end user information needs.
Ability to communicate effectively, orally and in writing, including communication of technical information to a wide range of
audiences.
® Ability to be responsive to multiple projects and timelines.
® Ability to work independently as well as in team settings.

Worl Schedule:
The work schedule consists of 40 hours per week and can be accomplished via telework.

Amount: $55 per hour
Evaluation and Performance Metrics:

Performance will be evaluated based on outcomes, budget adherence, feedback from stakeholders, and compliance with NM
DOH guidelines.



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Michelle A. Ortiz
Contracts Manager - Center for Public Health Operations and Center for Health Protection

Public Health Division
New Mexico Department of Health

ph: (505) 570-7876

NMHealth email: michellea otiz@doh.nm.goy

nmhealth.org
L—'_I FEacebook | X | Linkedin | Instaaram | Youtibe

Working with New Mexicans to become the healthiest state by 2040.

This &-mail and any decuments accompanying this e-mail transmission contain information that is privileged, confidential, and
propristary, which is intended only for the use of the individual named as the recipient of this message. Any disclosure, copying,
distribution, or use of this information by any persen other than the intended recipient is strictly prohibited. If you have recelved this
emall in error, please contact the sender and advise the sender of the error In transmission, and immediately delete the copy that
you raceived.



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

From: Matt Loahman

To: Octiz, Michells A, DON

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Horizon Determination Health Council Project Manager Position/revision
Date: Thursday, June 26, 2025 9:35:49 AM

Attachments: Imaged0i.png

Good moming -
Thank you very much for the opportunity, but we will decline this procurement.

Best regards,

Matt

Matt Loehman

Executive Director

Horizonaz of New Mexico

6121 Indian School Rd. NE, Suite 220
Albuguergque, NM 87110

office phone: (505) 345-1540
email: z 3 iz

web: www. horizonsofnewmexico.org

The State Use Act helps people with disabilities become gainfully employed, and it saves you valuable time and resources
otherwise used during the procurement process.

On Wed, Jun 25, 2025 at 7:43 PM Ortiz, Michelle A, DOH <Michelle A . Ortizi@doh nim.gov=> wrote:
Hi,
May I have a new determination. There had to be revisions.

Thank you

The Department of Health, Public Health Division, Health Promotion Program, hereinafter referred to as the Department, enters into this
agreement with Health Couneils (HC) and Tribal Health Councils (THC), hereinafler referred to as Health Councils. The effective date is
upon approval of both parties, whichever is later. This Scope of Work is not to exceed $67,995.00,

Section 1: Health Council Operations and Administration

Deliverable Documentation

1.1. Report on Health Council operations. I. Submission of New Mexico Department of
Health (NMDOH) Quarterly Report by:

i. October 10, 2025
ii. January 10, 2026
i, April 10, 2026
iv. June 10, 2026

II. Submission of:

1. Organizational structure document.
(i.e., Bylaws, Organizational Chart,

ete.)
. Fiscal Year 2026 Staffing Plan
. Health Council Member Roster
. Updated Health Council Factsheet
. Monthly Health Council meeting
minutes and/or agendas

Lh = L b2

IIL Set schedule with the Health Promotion Team




Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

(HPT) and attend regular monthly technical
assistance meetings with HPT.

Total

Section 2: Health Council Partnership and Collaboration on Behavioral Health

Deliverable

Documentation

2.1. Report on Health Council’s work to address and
improve behavioral health, including collaborating
with behavioral health key partners.

Additionally, participate and engage in the Behavioral
Health Reform and Investment Act regional behavioral
health meetings and regional behavioral health plans
coordinated by the Health Care Authority and/or
Administrative Office of the Courts, including
providing substantive expertise in the development of
relevant portions of the regional plans as a behavioral
health stakeholder as defined in the Behavioral Health
Reform and Investment Act,

I. Submission of NMDOH Quarterly Report by:

1. October 10, 2023
ii. January 10, 2026
iil, April 10, 2026
iv. June 10, 2026

2.2, Complete an assessment of your Health Council in
partnership with the Department, measuring capacity,
actions, responsibilities, community needs, and
feasibility to transition to local behavioral health
support pursuant to the Behavioral Health Reform and
Investment Act.

I. Completion of Health Council assessment.
Template and guidance to be provided by the
Department.

II. Report on progress of assessment through
NMDOH Quarterly Report.

Total

Section 3: Health Council Work on Initiatives to address Behavioral Health

Deliverable

Documentation

Research and identify strategies to create a work plan
for your Health Council, outlining how you will
address behavioral health utilizing the following
initiative areas: Paths to Health, mobile units, nicotine
misuse prevention, harm reduction, suicide prevention
trainings, SBIRT, 988, gunlocks, MOUD, or other
Healih Council identified behavioral health initiatives.

Once initiatives are identified from Addendum A, a
contract amendment including an updated scope of
work and budget table will be compieted.

i. Submission of work plan for behavioral
health initiatives by October 10, 2025.

Total

Section 4: Health Council Engagement and Community Health Improvement Plans (CHIP)

Deliverable

Documentation

4.1. Update and revise CHIP Plan as needed for the
fiscal year and complete quarterly CHIP progress
report that includes Key Performance Indicators as
outlined on approved Health Council CHIP.

1. Updated version of Health Council’s CHIP
1. Submission of NMDOH Quarterly Report by:

i. October 10, 2025
il. January 10, 2026
il April 10, 2026
iv. June 10, 2026

4.2. Educate and engage local government and
community in the work and activities of the Health
Council. Including hosting a community wide
engagement forum to discuss the work of the Health
Coungil.

I Copy of document stating your jurisdiction’s
recognition of your Health Council as written
in the NM County and Tribal Health Council
Act.

1. Passed Resolution in the last 5 years. For
Tribal Health Councils, a letter of support
will be accepied.

2. Copy of agenda and/or presentation given
to local jurisdiction,

3. Copy of forum invite, list of participants
that attended the engagement forum,




Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DCB9-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

agenda and minutes, and any materials
shared.
4.3, Completion of the yearly Health Council Impact 1. Submission of NMDOH Health Council
Survey. Impact Survey by October 10, 2025

Total

Michelle A, Ortiz
Contracts Manager - Center for Public Health Operations and Center for Health Protection

Public Health Division
New Mexico Department of Health

ph: (505) 570-7876
email: mi

1
NMHealth e

Eacebook | X | Linkedin | Inslagram | Youtube

Working with New Mexicans to become the healthiest state by 2040.

This e-mail and any documents accompanying this esmail transmission contain information that is privileged, confidential, and
propriatary, which Is intended only for the use of the individual named as the recipient of this maessage. Any disclosure, copying,
distribution, or use of this information by any person other than the intended racipient is strictly prohibited, If you have received this
emall In error, please contact the sender and advise the sender of the error in transmisslon, and immediately delete the copy thal
you recelved.

From: Matt Loehman <mloehman@horizonsofnewmexico.org=

Sent: Monday, June 9, 2025 8:24 AM

Te: Ortiz, Michelle A, DOH <MichelleA Ortiz@doh.nm gov>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Horizon Determination Health Council Project Manager Position

CAUTION: This email originated outside of our organization. Exercise caution prior to clicking on links or opening attachments.

Good morning -

Thank you very much for the opportunity, but we will decline this procurement.

Best regards,

Matt

Matt Loehman

Executive Director



Docusign Envelope ID; DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Horizonas of New Mesxieo
6121 Indian Scheool Rd. NE, Suite 220

Albuquerque, NM 87110

office phone: (505) 345-1540
email: mloehman@horizonsofnewmexico.org

web:

The State Use Act helps people with disabilities become gainfully employed, and it saves you valuable time and resources
otherwise used during the procurement process.

On Sun, Jun 8, 2025 at 6:36 PM Ortiz, Michelle A, DOH <MichelleA Ortizi@wdoh nm. gov> wrote:

Good afternoon,

Please provide a determination. Thank you

Health Council Project Manager:

Contract Position for Public Health Division, Center for Access and Linkage to Health Care, Statewide Health Promotion Program,

Position Overview:

The purpose of this position is to support the development of a system wide implementation and management of the Health Couneil
Legislative and State General Funding, Work with Health Councils and New Mexico Department of Health to ensure alignment with
Health Promotion Scope of Work.

Reporting Structure:

‘This position will lead NM DOH’s work with Health Councils but under the overall guidance and direction of the NM DOH Statewide
Health Promotion Program Manager. This Project Manager will report directly to the Statewide Health Promotion Program Manager.

Responsibilities:

This position is responsible for building and maintaining relationships with and ensuring comprehensive work with Health Councils to
include any work related to the administrative and operational work for the Health Councils Legislative and General Funds.

The Project Manager responsibilities will include the following:

Serve as the NM DOH lead in the agency on Health Councils and related work of Health Councils.

Streamline statewide health council and health promotion communications. Including DOH announcements, health council
resources, and filing system.

Assist in developing and maintaining reporting systems for health councils.

Help develop data analysis system for evaluating measurables, outcomes, and metrics from the reports.

Assist in tracking health council spend down across regions on a quarterly basis to ensure all legislative money is being spent.
Assist in the development of a contingency plan for additional deliverables if spend down is not being completed.

Support State of New Mexico Health Promotion Team members working to support statewide Health Councils.

Maonitor program performance and outcomes, implementing necessary improvements to align goals set by the Statewide Health
Promotion Program Manager,

Ideal Candidate:

Minimum Bachelor’s degree in related field,

Two years’ experience using data analysis software.

Ability to assess partner and end user information needs.

Ability to communicate effectively, orally and in writing, including communication of technical information to a wide range of
audiences.

Ability to be responsive to multiple projects and timelines.

= Ability to work independently as well as in team settings.

* e 8 @



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Work Schedule:

The work schedule consists of 40 hours per week and can be accomplished via telework.
Amount: $55 per hour

Evaluation and Performance Metrics:

Performance will be evaluated based on outcomes, budget adherence, feedback from stakeholders, and compliance with NM DOH
guidelines.

Michelle A. Ortiz
Contracts Manager - Center for Public Health Operations and Center for Health Protection

Public Health Division
New Mexico Department of Health

ph: (505) 570-7876
email: mi

= 1§
NMHealth o

Eacebook | X | Linkedin| Inglagram | Youlube

Working with New Mexicans to become the healthiest state by 2040.

This e-mall and any documents accompanying this e-mail transmission cantain information that iz privileged, confidential, and
proprigtary, which is intended only for the use of the individual named as the reciplent of this message. Any disclosure, copying,
distribution, or usa of this information by any person other than the intended recipiant is sirictly prohibited. If you have received this
emall in error, please contact the sender and advise the sender of the error in transmission, and Immediataly delate the copy that
you recelved.



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DCBY-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Revised: 03/24/2025 2025 HHE Request/Determination

New Mexico Department of Health
Hospital and Health Care Exemption Request & Determination

13- 1-98.1. Hospital and health care exemption. (2006)

The provisions of the Procurement Code shall not apply to procurement of items of tangible personal
propertv or services by a state agency or a local public body through:

A. an agreement with any other state agency, local public body or external procurement wnit or any
other person, corporation, organization or association that provides that the parties to the
agreement shall join together for the pwpose of making some or all pirchases necessary for the
operation of public hospitals or public and private hospitals, ifthe state pirchasing agent or a
central purchasing office makes a determination that the arrangement will or is likely fo reduce
lealth care costs; or

B. an agreement with any other state agency, local public body or external procurement unit or any
other person, corporafion, organizafion or association for the purpose of creating a network of
health care providers or jointly operating a counnon health care service, if the state purchasing
agent or a central prrchasing office makes a determination that the arangement will or is likely to
reduce health care costs, improve qualitv of care or improve access to cave.

Pursuant to the Procurement Code, §13-1-98.1 (health care exemption), NMSA 1978, the Chief
Procurement Officer of the New Mexico Department of Health (NMDOH) must determine
whether the following services, construction or items of tangible personal property to be
purchased are exempt from the provisions of the procurement code.

To request an HHE, complete the fields below and justify this exemption request.

Submit electronically to the appropriate Division Director for review and consideration then
forward to DOHASD.FORMS with the title format: HHE (name of vendor).

I.  This HHE request is fora: XINew OR [JAmendment (Provides details: Term, scope,

increase/decreasing amount.)

II.  Individual making this request:

Name: Miranda Durham NMDOH Program: Health Promotion Program
Phone: (505) 231-6040 Email: miranda.durham@doh.nm.gov
III.  Prospective Contractor(s)
No Region Health Council Name Vendor Name/Fiscal Agent Vendor #
Southeast Chaves County Health Council Chaves County Health Council 174315
2 Koutheast Curry County Health Council Curry County 54381
3 Koutheast De Baca County Health Council Village of Fort Sumner 54333

Page 1 of 8



Docusign Envelope 1D: D6D3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Revised: 03/24/2025

2025 HHE Request/Determination

4 Boutheast Eddy County Health Council United Way of Eddy County 113111
5 Boutheast Lea County Health Council Lea County 54388
6  Koutheast Lincoln County Community Health Council Lincoln County Community Health Council 105329
7 Koutheast Quay County Health Council Quay County Health Council 1325123
8  Koutheast Roosevelt County Health Council Roosevelt County Health Council 182814
9 kouthwest |Pofia Ana County Wellness Institute Community Foundation of Southern NM 03767
10 Bouthwest  [Catron County Health Council Center for Health Innovation 116825
11 S —— gf;i;abg%:{:}g Behavioral Health and Wellness OliveTree Creative Arts Community Center 149241
12 Kouthwest [Hidalgo County Health Council (Center for Health Innovation 116825
13 Socorro Co. Health Council posony County Options Prevention & 142363
Southwest ducation

14 Kouthwest  [.una County Health Council County of Luna 54390
15 Kouthwest [Otero County Health Council [The Counseling Center, Inc. {6578
16 Bouthwest [Grant County Community Health Council Center for Health Innovation 116825
17 WNorthwest  [Health Equity Council (Bernalillo) Health Equity Council 116620
18 [Northwest  [Cibola County Health Council City of Grants 54336
19 Northwest [McKinley Community Health Alliance Indigenous Lifeways 144879
20 Northwest pandoval County Health Council Sandoval County Government 54398
21 [Northwest [San Juan Health Council San Juan County Partnership Inc. 50854
22 Northwest  [Partnership for a Healthy Torrance Community [Perpetual Tears Memorial Inc. 104609
23 Northwest [Community Wellness Council (Valencia) Community Wellness Council 105819
24 Northwest  coma Community Health Council Pueblo of Acoma 16259
25 WNorthwest [Ats'iis Naabik'iyati' (To'Hajiilee) Canoncito Band of Navajos Health Center {15306
26 Northwest [Santo Domingo Health Council (HOPA) Santo Domingo Pueblo 16257
27 [Northwest  [Cochiti Health Council Pueblo de Cochiti-Health Council 16564
28 INorthwest [Santa Ana Health Advisory Board Pueblo of Santa Ana (Health Dept.) H6573
29 Northeast Pueblo of Picuris Pueblo of Picuris H7237
30 Northeast (Guadalupe County Guadalupe County Health Planning Board (54892
31 [Northeast Pueblo de San Ildefonso Pueblo de San Ildefonso H7230
32 Northeast Colfax County Colfax County Treasurer 54380
33 Northeast San Miguel County bii&%fjnmw Mexico Community 182760
34 Northeast County of Mora County of Mora 544391
35 Northeast Pueblo of Tesuque IPueblo of Tesuque 16697
36 |Northeast [ncorporated County of los Alamos Incorporated County of Los Alamos 54457
37 Northeast County of Harding ICounty of Harding 112838
38 Northeast Nambe Pueblo INambe of Pueblo H6587
39 [Northeast Union County Union County Network Inc 3959
40 Northeast Santa Clara Pueblo Santa Clara Pueblo 16563
41 Northeast Rio Arriba County Bridge to health 175426
42 Northeast Taos County County of Taos 54404
43 Northeast Santa Fe County Santa Fe County 54297

L.

Number of Years providing services to NMDOH: Varying Years

Page 2 of 8




Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9486-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

I,

I1I.

Revised: 03/24/2025 2025 HHE Request/Determination

Compensation & Term of prospective contract of this request:

Cost: $4,643,939.00 Term: Fiscal Year 2026 July 1*', 2025-June 30", 2026

If Amendment: Total Costs: Total Term:

Provide an explanation of the criteria and unique capabilities developed and specified by the
agency as necessary to perform and/or fulfill the contract and upon which the state agency
reviewed available sources. Include sufficient explanation of how the professional service,
service, construction or item(s) of tangible personal property will or is likely to reduce health
care costs (hospital exemption); or how this acquisition will or is likely to reduce health care
costs, improve quality of care or improve access to care (health care exemption).

The criteria development and specified by our NMDOH are crucial for ensuring the effective
performance and fulfillment of the contract to provide health promotion services through HCs.
These criteria have been aligned with NMDOH objectives and priorities in promoting public
health. They encompass rigorous standards for service delivery, including but not limited to:

o Expertise and Experience: Demonstrated capability and health promotion
strategies community engagement.

e Resource allocation: Clear guidelines on the allocation and utilization of
resources to maximize impact and delivery

e  Qutcome Measurement: Defined metrics and evaluation methods to assess the
effectiveness of health promotion initiatives

o Compliance and Accountability: Adherence to regulatory requirements and
accountability for outcomes as stipulated in the statement of work.

These criteria serve as a framework to ensure that the contracted health councils can effectively
meet the needs of the community and deliver measurable health improvements.

The acquisition of these services is expected to yield significant benefits in reducing healthcare
costs, improving quality of care, and enhancing access to healthcare through several key
mechanisms:

1. Cost Reduction: By leveraging the expertise and specialized resources of the
health councils, we anticipate more efficient deployment of health promotion
strategies and interventions. These targeted efforts aim to prevent costly health
complications, reduce hospital admissions, and mitigate the overall burden on
healthcare resources.

2. Enhanced Access: Through community-based initiatives and culturally
competent practices, the health councils facilitate greater access to healthcare
services among underserved populations. This includes improving outreach efforts,
Jostering trust within communities, and addressing barriers to healthcare access such
as language, cultural norms, and geographic isolation.

3. Population Health Management: By addressing social determinants of health
and promoting healthy behaviors, the services provided by the health councils
contribute to broader population health improvements. This holistic approach
supports sustainable healthcare delivery and fosters healthier communities over the
long term.

In summary, the acquisition of these services is poised to generate tangible benefits by reducing
healthcare costs through prevention, enhancing the quality of care through evidence-based

Page 3 of 8



Docusign Envelope ID: D6D3DC83-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Revised: 03/24/2025 2025 HHE Request/Determination

practices, and improving access to healthcare services among diverse populations. These
outcomes align with our commitment to advancing healthcare equity and optimizing health
outcomes for all stakeholders.

IV.  Provide a narrative description of the agency’s due diligence in determining the basis for the
procurement, including procedures used by the agency to conduct a review of available sources.

The NMDOH conducted a comprehensive needs assessment to identify specific healthcare
service gaps and priorities within the community. This assessment can be found in the State Health
Improvement Plan. The assessment included reviewing demographics data, health indicators,
community feedback, and existing service capabilities.

Based on the evaluation outcomes from this needs assessment, which included a thorough review
of health indicators reflecting community health needs, feedback from community stakeholders, and
an assessment of existing health care service capabilities, the NMDOH determined that no other
businesses or organizations could more appropriately perform the agreement than the selected HCs.
The HCs demonstrated a comprehensive approach to healthcare service delivery, emphasizing
community engagement strategies tailored to local needs. Their proven ability to effectively address
health disparities through targeted initiatives and their track record of achieving positive health.

V.  List the scope of work/services (SOW), construction or items of tangible personal property of
the prospective contract:
FY2026 Health Council Scope of Work
The Department of Health, Public Health Division, Health Promotion Program, hereinafter referred to
as the Department, enters into this agreement with Health Councils (HC) and Tribal Health Councils
(THC), hereinafter referred to as Health Councils. The effective date is upon approval of both parties,
whichever is later. This Scope of Work is not to exceed $67,995.00.

Section 1: Health Council Operations and Administration

Deliverable Documentation Budget

1.1. Report on Health Council . Submission of New Mexico NMDOH

operations. Department of Health Quarterly

(NMDOH) Quarterly Report Reports @

by: $2,505.00/ea.
i.  October10, 2025
ii. January 1 0,2026 Not to exceed

iii. April 10, 2026 $10,020.00
iv. June 10, 2026

Il.  Submission of:

1. Organizational
structure document.
(i.e., Bylaws,
Organizational Chart,
etc.)

2. Fiscal Year 2026
Staffing Plan

Page 4 of 8



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DCB9-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Revised: 03/24/2025

2025 HHE Request/Determination

I.

3. Health Council
Member Roster
4. Updated Health
Council Factsheet
5. Monthly Health
Council meeting
minutes and/or
agendas
Set schedule with the Health
Promotion Team (HPT) and
attend regular monthly
technical assistance
meetings with HPT.

Total

$10,020.00

Section 2: Health Council Partnership and Collaboration on Behavioral Health

needs, and feasibility to transition to

Report on progress of

Deliverable Documentation Budget
2.1. Report on Health Council's work to I, Submission of NMDOH NMDOH
address and improve behavioral health, Quarterly Report by: Quarterly
including collaborating with behavioral i.  October10, 2025 Reports @
health key partners. ii.  January10,2026 $8,500.00/ea.

jii.  April10, 2026

Additionally, participate and engage in e Mne10,2028 Not to exceed
the Behavioral Health Reform and $34,000.00
Investment Act regional behavioral
health meetings and regional
behavioral health plans coordinated by
the Health Care Authority and/or
Administrative Office of the Courts,
including providing substantive
expertise in the development of
relevant portions of the regional plans
as a behavioral health stakeholder as
defined in the Behavioral Health Reform
and Investment Act.
2.2, Complete an assessment of your |, Completion of Health Council | NMDOH
Health Council in partnership with the assessment. Template and Quarterly
Department, measuring capacity, guidance to be provided by Reports @
actions, responsibilities, community the Department. $1,000.00/ea.

local behavioral health support assessment throughNMDOH | Not to exceed
pursuant to the Behavioral Health Quarterly Report. $4,000.00
Reform and Investment Act.

Total $38,000.00

Section 3: Health Council Work on Initiatives to address Behavioral Health

Page 5 of 8



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Revised: 03/24/2025

2025 HHE Request/Determination

Deliverable

Documentation

Budget

Research and identify strategies to
create a work plan for your Health
Council, outlining how you will address
behavioral health utilizing the following
initiative areas: Paths to Health, mobile
units, nicotine misuse prevention, harm
reduction, suicide prevention trainings,
SBIRT, 988, gunilocks, MOUD, or other
Health Council identified behavioral
health initiatives.

Once initiatives are identified from
Addendum A, a contract armmendment
including an updated scope of work and

budget table will be completed.

Submission of work plan
for behavioral health
initiatives by October 10,
2025,

$5,000.00 upon
submission of
documentation.

Not to exceed
$5,000.00

Total

$5,000.00

Section 4: Health Council Engagement and Community Health Improvement Plans (CHIP)

government and community in the work
and activities of the Health Council.
Including hosting a community wide
engagement forum to discuss the work
of the Health Council.

Deliverable Documentation Budget
4.1. Update and revise CHIP Plan as I.  Updated version of Health NMDOH
needed for the fiscal year and complete Council's CHIP Quarterly
quarterly CHIP progress report that IIl.  Submission of NMDOH Reports @
includes Key Performance Indicators as Quarterly Report by: $1,900.00/ea.
outlined on approved Health Council i.  October10, 2025
CHIP. ii.  January10,2026 Not to exceed
iii. April 10, 2026 $7.600.00
iv. June 10, 2026
4.2, Educate and engage local |, Copy of document stating $7,200.00 upon

your jurisdiction’s recognition

of your Health Council as

written in the NM County and

Tribal Health Council Act.

1. Passed Resolution inthe
last 5 years. For Tribal
Health Councils, a letter
of support will be
accepted.

2. Copy of agenda and/or
presentation given to
local jurisdiction.

3. Copy of forum invite, list
of participants that
attended the
engagement forum,

submission of all
documentation.

Not to exceed
$7,200.00

Page 6 of 8



Docusign Envelope ID: DBD3DC838-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Revised: 03/24/2025 2025 HHE Request/Determination
agenda and minutes, and
any materials shared.
4.3. Completion of the yearly Health I Submission of NMDOH Health | $175.00 upon
Council Impact Survey. Council Impact Survey by submission of
October 10, 2025 Health Council
Impact Survey.
Not to exceed
$175.00
Total $14,975.00

Page 7 of 8



Docusign Envelope ID: DED3DC89-9496-4D06-9EEA-C37546D84F92

Revised: 03/24/2025 2025 HHE Request/Determination
Certified by:
Signed by:
Dr. kinune Boirpps Jun 29, 2025 | 10:41 AM MDT
27AC1AE33COB4EE.. Date: ' !

Dr. Kirene M. Bargas, Chief Procurement Officer

DocuSigned by:
‘ Miranda Duwleam Date: Jun 18, 2025 | 1:49 PM MDT

AdED...

Miranda Duram, Program Director

Signed by:
Gira DeBlassic Date: Jun 30, 2025 | 8:05 AM MDT

2B5F58DB0ADT7441.

Gina DeBlassie, Cabinet Secretary

Page 8 of 8



UNION COUNTY
Resolution No. 2026-21

Authorization of Special Revenue Fund (600) (DFA # 29900) budget increase

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Union County meeting in regular session on December
09, 2025 did propose to make budget adjustments; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union does, through Budget Resolution 2026-21 ask that authorization
for the budgetary adjustments be granted, as summarized in the attachment; and

WHEREAS, the County of Union wishes to increase the capital purchases line item by one hundred
and fifty thousand dollars ($150,000).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Union County does
hereby approve the aforementioned budget adjustments and respectfully requests the
authorization for the budgetary adjustments and revisions be granted by the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration of the State of New Mexico.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and official seal this 9t day of
December 2026.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS - UNION COUNTY

Clayton Kiesling, Chairman
ATTEST:

Justin Bennett, Member

Devian Fields, County Clerk

Lloyd Miller, Member



BAR 15-36-21528 printed from LGBMS on 2025-12-03 17:31:42

State of New Mexico - DFA Local Government Division
Budget Adjustment Request - Union County - 2026
BAR Special Revenue Capital Expenditures

Bar ID Contact Phone Emall Status
15-36-21528 ENTITY
Details
Fund Department Object Code PreAdjusted Budget Adjustment Ad|usted Budget
2990% DGtBar Speclal Ravenue 2002 Gsngqgl Administration 58999 0"‘206 ?Cgpnal Purchases 400,000.00 150,000.00 650,000.00

Justification
Compliance with Section 6-6-2, NMSA, 1978 compilation:
1. The requested budget adjustments were authorized at a scheduled Governing Body meeting open to the public on 2025-12-09

2. Justification should provide a sufficient explanation for budget adjustment. Backup documentation such as grant award letter or other documents
requested by Budget and Finance Analysts, should be submitted on LGBMS.

Approvals
75 L] S i Role Date
D Mpufdii o 12/3/25
Analyst
Bureau Chief




%‘%Umon ounty

UNION COUNTY HOLIDAY SCHEDULE
RESOLUTION NUMBER 2026-22

WHEREAS, at a meeting of the Board of Union County Commissioners on December 9, 2025, the
following was among the proceedings:

WHEREAS, the Board of Union County Commissioners designated the following holidays:

Observed on Observed on
Holiday Date Sheriff Deputies 4 Day Work Week
New Year’s Day Thurs Jan 1, 2026 Thurs Jan 1, 2026 Thurs Jan 1, 2026
Martin Luther King Mon Jan 19 Mon Jan 19 Mon Jan 19
President’s Day Mon Feb 16 Mon Feb 16 Mon Feb 16
Memorial Day Mon May 25 Mon May 25 Mon May 25
Juneteenth Fri Jun 19 Thurs Dec 24 Wed Dec 23
Independence Day Sat July 4 Sat July 4 Thurs July 2
Labor Day Mon Sept 7 Mon Sept 7 Mon Sept 7
Columbus Day Mon Oct 12 Mon Oct 12 Mon Oct 12
Veteran’s Day Wed Nov 11 Wed Nov 11 Wed Nov 11
Thanksgiving (Admin Leave) Wed Nov 25 Wed Nov 25 Wed Nov 25
Thanksgiving Day Thurs Nov 26 Thurs Nov 26 Thurs Nov 26
Christmas Day Fri Dec 25 Fri Dec 25 Thurs Dec 24

Personal Holiday

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Union County Commissioners
designates the above holidays for 2026.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 9" day of December, 2025.

ATTEST UNION COUNTY COMMISSION
SEAL .
Devian Fields, County Clerk Clayton Kiesling, Chairman

Justin Bennett, Member

Lloyd Miller, Member



Ulllﬂll C ounty

RESOLUTION 2026-23

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING PUBLIC SAFETY TELECOMMUNICATORS AS FIRST RESPONDERS
AND AS CRITICAL INFRASTRUCTURE WITHIN THE PUBLIC SAFETY FRAMEWORK

WHEREAS, the County Commission recognizes that Public Safety Telecommunicators are a vital
and irreplaceable component of the public safety framework, and without their dedication and
expertise, effective emergency response would not be possible; and

WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators serve as the first, first responder receiving
emergency calls, gathering essential information, and making rapid, life-saving decisions that
directly affect the outcome of incidents and emergencies; and

WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators provide care, compassion, and stability to citizens
in their worst and most traumatic moments, and many Public Safety Telecommunicators
experience the cumulative effects of PTSD and vicarious trauma as a result of their service; and

WHEREAS, despite these challenges, Public Safety Telecommunicators must continue answering
emergency calls, monitoring radio traffic, coordinating responses, receiving and sending text
messages, and increasingly managing streaming video and other emerging communication

technologies; and

WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators must be knowledgeable of not only their own
agency’s procedures but also the response protocols for every law enforcement, fire, EMS, and
emergency management agency they support, often across multiple jurisdictions,

municipalities; and

WHEREAS, the position of Public Safety Telecommunicator is a public safety role requiring
independent judgment, rapid assessment, allocation of multi-jurisdictional resources, and the
ability to coordinate complex emergency operations; and

WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators also serve as the community’s public safety
intelligence resource by collecting, analyzing, and disseminating critical data and situational
information to field responders and public safety officials who would not otherwise have timely

access to such information; and

WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators are required to undergo extensive background
checks, drug testing, academy-level training, emergency medical dispatch certification, and
continuous education, ensuring they maintain the knowledge and skills necessary to execute
their duties at the highest standard; and



WHEREAS, Public Safety Telecommunicators often perform their duties with little or no formal
liability protections or recognition under existing classifications, despite their central role in
safeguarding life, property, and community welfare; and

WHEREAS, the County Commission supports statewide and national efforts to recognize and
formally classify Public Safety Telecommunicators as First Responders and to reclassify their
duties from clerical or administrative categories to “Protected Services”; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of County Commissioners of Union County
hereby formally recognizes Public Safety Telecommunicators as First Responders and as
essential personnel within the critical infrastructure of the public safety framework; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Commission acknowledges and honors the
dedication, professionalism, and sacrifice of Public Safety Telecommunicators who serve as the
lifeline between the public and emergency response personnel; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Commission supports state and federal efforts to
reclassify Public Safety Telecommunicators as “Protected Services” and to extend appropriate
recognition, protections, and resources consistent with their essential role in public safety; and

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be entered into the official record of the
County Commission and that copies may be provided to local, state, and national leaders in
support of the formal recognition of Public Safety Telecommunicators as First Responders.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9" day of December, 2025.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF UNION COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Attested by:

Devian Fields, County Clerk Clayton Kiesling, Chairman

Justin Bennett, Member

Lloyd Miller, Member



00°G6¢€¢

SZ°TIBkC

9076191

9T°1TT

9% " 0¢€

TE°0T

£Z°689

28 €¢

9% 0L
v0o°8IT
9k 0L
0870¢¢E
0e 62
IS vE
GE 89

8% LE
287 0%T

ELTE600T
62°9%
70 0%
08" €S
6E°T6

JUNOWY

#0d

:abeg

9L0TSZZOT

9L02SzT0v

L00Z80TOY
YA A R IR
94028981V
9L0Z8ICTY
SZ0ZEQTOV
SZ0CE0TOY
SZ0ZLSTTY

L00Z80TOF
LO0ZSOTOw

L00Z80TOF
L0O0ZSZCOF
SZ0ZESOTE
9.L028951¥
LO0ZZ0TOR

wWwelT PuTT

AIELIVE TESOTHANI

F8TS# JATIHHS

ZZT# dd NITQJYD

78164 NOILVLSHNS AATIEHS
68TCH ASYIT TEAMOL

55TZ# DNILSOH 'TIYHAE
65TC# MWMIYIV TITJd

LOSH# QA FTTIANTID

HOIAYES ENOHd TIED/IHATgYL
MIETO - HIOIAGES INOHE TITHD

JOIAGdS ENOCHd TTHED/LITYIYL
ADIAYIS HNOHA TTHED

qdE3T - WOIANES IHTAYIL

Dd — TIDIAYHUS HANOHA TTHD

WO - 49DIA¥HES BENCHA TTHD/IHTHYL

uoTidraosag

SEOIOANT ONIANYILSING

AATLOWOLOY NOSYHA

8T¥88 WN SANIOW SHA
AYMHDIH NOLYd $0E6

"ONI S¥dEATIINd ITOD
TOTB8 WN SIAQCTOD

IS NIVA N TZPT1

01T ‘SNOILYTIHEI
INEANYAA0S ALITIAID

STFP88 KWN NOLAVID
LNOdd *S Z0T

ATddNS AETAVEL

STF88 WN NOLAVTO
INCYd "S 20T

ATddNs AF1avdd

ST?88 MN NOLAYID
INOdd 8 Z0T

ATddNS KETavEd

STV88 WN NOLAVID
OQ¥0d NEE¥D §6

HADIAMES OINY S§,avdd

0FPLLB HN NOLVH
Le Xod "0 4a

OTT SLLANNEY

81788 WN SENIOW SHA
L9 X0d "0-d

00 ENOHJATHL AFTIVA YOWd

£9%9 L6T09 TI WYHIIS TOHVD
£E3F3 X0d 04

ALITIGOW 13L¥

€959 L6T09 TII WYIALS TOUYD
€979 X0g 04

ALITIHSOW 13IV¥

sweN

DE6C %I

$10L Q0°6tT
TE€80T

T¥e SZTIT8%C
aIvd

$ILOL SZ°T118%¢C
S21T9¢

T¥d 9076197

§10L S90'6T9T

THd 9T° 1T
aIvd

$I0L S91°TT
$0CeTT

™d 9F°0¢€
aIvd

$10L 9% 0¢
E0E6TT

¥d  T£°0T
aIvd

$I0L TE°0T
LECHTT

I¥d £z 689

arvd

$I0OL €£2°689
£€-GZ02521T
Ve  ZBTEZ
arvd

§I0L Z8°€Z
B8E95CD-G2

T¥E LPTZTL

aIvd
SIOL LY TTL
¢-ST0eT0ZT

TY¥E  0€°8LT

arva
§I0I 0E°6LT
GZ0CSCTTXT

Ve 527 1%¢T
arvd

$10L SZ°TFECT
SZOZICTTIXS
#OANZ

SC/%¥0/2T 1®3ed



6L79ET

68 F¥

19°16

0070911

0g-6g

16°190T

T6°ZFT

00" €w

00°8F%TT

00°00S

007004

QP0ZELTOF

1UNOUrY

#0d

rabeg

LOEZLLTER

9L025zZ0h

82TZBOTOF

LT0Z80TOF

we3I aUTT

SYOLINOW RAOLSND AIINAWACD

ZANOOYO - SHMOJAING

SHOIAYAS LOVAINOD ISINOIINIAATES

uoT3dTIDsS8q

SUDIOANT DONIANYISLNC

STFPE88 WN NOLAYID
¥6 X0d "0 d

SLY¥Yd L 9I9 SHEINTD OH

Z069L XL OTHONVY NYS
688¢ X0d

ANYAROD ¥3d¥vd dTHIAAVYH

Z069L XI OTHDNY N¥S
688 Xod

ANYAWOD d3d¥d ATHIARYH
OFLL8 WN NOLVH

1S dNZ 'S 9zZel
SHOIAYES AJHAACDEY 3 ONTUOILINOKW

6880 ZTESL XI SYTIVd
68802ZT Xod Od

6880 Id3d

ONI LMAWAINDH 3 S¥D HANIT

ZTTL8 W dAN0YEAN0NgTyY
AN TdATg FANYEINE 0991

ISHEM S NVRANYH

L9T9 T¥PIP9 OW XAIIS SUYSNYH
L926TYF X049 "0°4

088299€S88 I4HQ

AEONITID

ST¥%88 WN NOLAYTID
LS INOdd S STT

0T7 ‘EDIA¥ES B E¥IL S, AA03dd

ST¥88 WN MNOLAYID
LS INOYd S STT

OTT ‘HOIAYES 3 HEMIL S XAAAd

T€8E€ 0ZTL8 WN 3NDYINDNETY
MN "Hd HTIIASYHEWHAS 606F

SOTIENOOVH "9 MNYIA

1£8€ 02TL8 MN AnTIIN0NITY
M “dQ ETITASIINANS 606F

SOTIMNOOVH "9 MNVIA

L8064 XI ENITXHL
9¢Z% X0d '0°d

aureN

[VIORE YR AN

T¥d  6L79EZ

qrvd

$I0L 6L"9€2
85E06

TN 687 FF
dIvd

SIOL 68°'FV
0LLIETR

1980 19716
aryd

§IOL T9°Te6
FLEOLED

I¥d  00°0OPTT

$10L 0Q0°QFTT

vd 0£°6€
aIvd

§101 0g£°6¢€
¥eLOVEES

T¥E  T6°T90T
aIvd
$ICL Te 1901

Ted TeTvT

arvda

5101 T6°2%T
LOZEZZEOLE
T¥d 00" EE
arvd

$IOL 00°'€¥
5TESE

TH9  00°8FTT

§I0L (00°8FTT

#OANT

SZ/v0/2T :23Bq



VeST 01TL8 WN HADIINGNTTY

H2LS T 2019 EN T4 QYIISEWCH 0TES

TYd  SL°E€RTOT
dIivd

00°000¢ G666¢ 9L02Z820S LIND LNINOAWOD 1IdNY §7 X4 SIOL GL'ECPTIOT
GL EYTIT S666¢ Z90ZT0TOF LIANY G7 A4 dTT ‘TIIH ® NmModd ‘OTIILIYNS B8ESTTS
€TTO 99254 ¥XI SYIIYd I9d €€£°2021
€IT099 X0d "0°d arvd
$L0L €£°2ZCZT
£€£°2Z021T TP00E T80ZELS09 YIVHD TO0S0ESBERPHHANT LOdHEd HDTJA40 TC090ES8TZRTF
€ITO 99¢SL XI SYTTYQ ve  FSreek
€IT099 X0d 04 arvda
$I0L FS'ETV
FGTEeh Tv00€ 1802E6S09 1SEY IOOA/YIVHD TOO0FLOCBZHTH4ANT I0d4d EOIAAO TO0VL9EBCHIT
0% 8zsk 6E00E L90ZLSTTR ATTIANIED - JONVINSNI SIJA
0% 825¥ 6E00E L90ZESOTE QIEY - HDONYINSNI SIAA T0SL8 KN HA WINYS T8d 00°Z%¥522
0% '825% 6E£00¢ £90Z6%607 QYISIWY - HONYENSMI SIdA LATALS OAISITYD %¥p aiva
0% "828F 6E00€ L90ESHR0Y NYJES - HONYMASNI STJA $LOL 00°2%972
0% "825F 6£00¢€ LO0ETVLOY NITNAYD - HONYIASNI SIJA ALTIONIOY HONVMNSNI ALNOOD WM 0ET00-0M
SZILS WN HONDIINDONGTY T99 0D0°59¢
80TLZ X0d 04 aivd
$I0L ©00-c9cg
00°G69¢ S500€ 0T0290TOF 'IVAOQONYS H - 9I¥ OYVYITOT ISdEN0D YALAYHO OVYI ODIXAW MIN Z-5202G2TT
0G°SL YVLETZ SZ02GZ70% IdHO a¥0d Z-L8FPT960-00089Gp604#
I7°60T PRL6T GZOZEOTO® JAATIEHS L-V8EC960~ZTHLE0ZLOH
[AAS ¥4 PPLET SZOZEQTOF AATARHS L-TGESHLO-STHLB0ZLO#
0E°"TTT PRLET GZ0ZEQTOF IASNOHIYENOD 8-666FFL0-STHLBOZLOH
S0°6S YELET SZ0ZS¥80% NYUHES S-ZPTSPLO-ZTLIOTZLOH
FFTTIST PRLE6T SZ0ZEOTOF DQTI9 NIWAY O-L6TVL0O-TTPLB0CZLO# G88L SZTL8 WN ANDYANDNITY T9d  Z20°€29
9T LT PERLET SZO¢E0T0w QAT A0 T-F8LYFLO-LT6S90ZL0# G8RLEZ XOH 0d arvd
6687 EE AN SZ0ZE0T0F AdH3d TTO 8-ZEZSVLO-80ZS99F604 $101L Z0°£29
SE"CH THLET S20ZE0TOV daFd TTO F-G6TZ960-802599F604 ANYAAOD SYD ODIXHAW MEN SZOZTITTIT
STFS8 HN NOLXYTID 1949 S5 ¥62
%6 XOod "0°d arvdg
$10L S§°%67
GG k62 PZLET 9.0Z5220% SEELTIA T6888#ANT SI¥VE L 9I9 SRUATO OW T-16888
SIP88 WN NOLAY'ID v 02687
v6 X0g "0°d aivd
$I0L 0Z°68T1
0Z 68T FZLE2 9.02S2Z0% SETTIANS JTATIVIL S6F06#ANT SI¥¥d 0 9Td SMMNTD DK £€6F06
STY88 WN NOLAVID TY¥E 98" LG
V6 X0d 04 aivda
SIOI 98°4LS
987 LS vZLez 9.025220% TIO 7LPO0E#ANT SI¥Vd [ 2Ig SMINTO DKW vLV06
STF88 WN MOLAYID I9d 66729
76 X0d "C° g aIrvda
§10L 66729
66729 vZLER 9L0Z52Z0% dENCISNEL ITAL OSHO6H#ANT SI¥Yd L OI9 SHINTI DKW 0S%06
Junoury #Om w23 =2UT] QOHUQﬂHUme BUIR N #UNVZH
£ rebeg SEDIOANT HNIANYISINO 0E:6C:FPT GZ/FP0/TT :®3BdQ



L976L

EF° LY

00°GST

cy 3L

287 05T

t6° IS

00°5¢

00°00ST

01" L

SvL8e

SLTBY

Junowy

ovLee

#0d

1abeg

GE0Z5F80F

GZ0ZESOTY

€50ZT18008

TOTCEDTOW

6002L0TOF

60022010V

9€0280TOF

SZ0CES0TY

w2l SuTT]

50009 NYJES - INVYJIOUd 6G8GEHANT

JATIHHS — INYJ0dd £ehSE#ANL

HYANFETYD MSHA 9202 TIvPPPop#ANT
AYANETYD HMSHA 9202 TTPPFPORHANT

SHOIASHS HNOHJATHEL

uotydranssg

SHOIOANI DNIANYISINO

L8E X0" 04
ANYICId NIILSHMELOOS

SIFE8 WN NOLAYTID
LBE XOd 0d

ANYAOdd NIHILSHMHLNOS

STF38 WN NOLAYID
LBE XO" G4

dNVdCEd NIHALSHMHINGS

ST¥P88 WN NOLEYTD
LBE XOo"H 0Odg

ANYIOYd NAHISHEHMHLAOS

SI?P88 WN NOLAVYID
L8 X0d9 Od

ANYJOYd NIELSEMHEINOS

STF88 WN NOLAYIOD
L8E XOd 04

ANYA0cdd NEIISEMEINOS

¢Z0FF HO STIVA NIWUSYHD
1S NOLONIHSYM H LG

“OTT ‘SYEMOL gHANOCS

STPBE WN NOLAYIOD

IS NOSYEMAJdIr 9T¥
SHOIAMAS ONINYWID N¥I ¥va9d
OTTIrNEL OQdI¥dTY

0090 TOT6T ¥4 ¥IHATHAYIIHA
008Le X094 04

NOIIYJOJd0d T1INd

0080 TOT6T ¥4 YIHdTHAYIIHA
008LE X0d "0°4d

NOIILTIOJU0D T1I1N0

66TL8 WN HNOIANDONITY
200%6 Xod 0" 4

dOYD ADOTOHOASA ALUAYS 2ITdNd

8BTIT ZF6EL HO NOWAND
88TT X049 "0°4

I0Ld

sweN

0€:62 VT

aIvd

$IOL Z8°0ST
EEVSE

T¥d €67 1S
aivd

§10L €6°1%
qTESE

T¥d  007°9¢E
gIwd

$I0L 00°9¢
TLOEET

T¥d 00°00S5T
arvd

$I0L  00°00ST

8Z0Z-TT

g 0T L
arvd

$10L 0T L
T9285¥%9F
Y9 96 ° 8%
arvd

$I10L %67 8%
TTPEPRSE

g G%TLBE

arva
$10L SP°L8E
ZISLT

T¥d  GL'8%
aIrvd

$10I GL'8F
SZ0ZT0ZT
#DANT

SZ/¥0/2T @3ea



G9°8%1 ££00€ 9.028L9CZF SEDIION DNILFEAW SAY ZSTORHANI HEavdT AINNOD NOINN CSTS7¥
ST¥88 WN NOIAYTID T¥E ¢S TLT
98F X0d "0 4 aivd

$§I0L 2GS ILE
ST TLT £E00E mhommhwmw mmuHHOZUZHHmmEmQQmmﬁww#>ZH mmo@mngZDOUZOHZD mmﬁmv

T8F0 G926L XTI S¥TIIYQ g §5769
T8F053 X0dg 04 ardd

$I0L 66 59
§5°69 TELGT 9702010V HOIANES XTHINOW TTES6Z0SBTHANT NOTI¥HdOdd0D ISHIAINA T1E6620588C
LBO6L XI HNITXHL ¥d £0°0¥8

GEC Xod "0 d ar¥d
$10L €£0°0¥%8

£0°0F%8 2686 3E€0Z8010F HELSJANT 40 IT0M TOOSHFHANT 07T ONITOADEE HIVIS-IHL TO0SE
927 0L iviee GZ0ZEQTOP QIEd dT0 S0-GG90-TR#LDOV
¥y 8e ivLee SZ0CECTOR XENNY TC-0B8Z0-ZE#1L00Y
LL"ESS 1viec SZ0CE0TOw ASACH IMA0D TO-SLZ0-ZE#I00Y
LLTLYT Iviog SZOZEQTOR NIRAY Z0-0ZZ0-ZE#100Y
£5°88 Tviee GCOCEDTOR NIRAY 20-%TZ0-CEHLODY S1¥88 WN NOLAYID I¥d  0S° €181
82 FLT INZRY4 GZOZE0T0w AATHHEHS €0-86TT-ZZ#ILD0%Y LONLSEHD T ar€d
ZB796T N4 STOTEDTOPR JATIIHS €0-0£€0-ZTH#LD0¥ §I0L QS €I8T
£97ETT IvLeC SZ0Z5C20Fr 1dad d¥0¥ TO-SE00-TT#I3D0V NOLAYIO 40 NMOL SZ0Z5¢TT
02164 XL OTIIGVHAY TEd  I5°0€T
00L0€ XOd Od aI1¥d
SLOL TS'0ET1
TS 0€ET LFO0E [ANIATAAN ATddIN SSvdd 3 €HAd ¥MIY SYHHLOEYE MOL T-7FS6S
ST788 WN NOLAYID T¥d  00°6§
88 X049 JI¥d
$I0L 00°6GS
00° 89 0zZ00¢E 9v0CEQTOP SAHM LBLEZHANI 00 DNIOVEMI ALJHDYMS LgLee
STFP88 WN NOLAYID Te9d 00°ST

88 XOd dIvd

00°ST 0zZoog 9V 0ZE0TOY SAMA LVLETHANT 00 DNIQYdI AILUHOYMS LPLEZ
STP88 WN NOLAYTID T¥d 9¢°5§
88 Xod Ivd

SILOL 9Z°6S
928§ 6TL6C 9L0CS2COY SAITAANS Q9LEZHANT 00 INIQVAL ALMHOVMS 09LET
GT¥88 WN NOIAVYIO ¥9d 297 0€g
L8E X049 o4 arvd
$LOL  Z9°0¢tg
¢8 0€EE 9E66C STOZIVLOV dd NITN4A¥S - ENYJOoMd 6509E4ANT ANYd0dd NIILSAMHINOS 6509¢
ST¥P88 WN NOLEYTID ¥d 077 I8T

LBE X0d 04 aIvd

02 18T 9€66<C SC0ZTPLOF SWE NITAAYD - HANVYdOdd 8G09E#ANIT ANVIOEd NYHLSEMHLNACS 8G602¢
STIP88 TN NOLAYTID TYd L9761
JUNOUNY #0d ws3] SuT] uotadraosaq [uEN #OANT

g rebeg SHOICANI ONIANYISINO 0€:62:FT GSZ/%0/2T :°3ed



FS9LTCET »xxONTOIOANT TYIOLx»»

FETTRT LBLBT CRAVARCY AR SWE NITIOAYD - Tafd
92°991¢2 L8L6T TT0Z8010% JATIHES — TANI
2676596 L8LET PP0ZGZT0H LJdAQ a¥od - THENd
L6788 LBLGT TT0ZZ0T0F SHHAIYNYW - TENJ
LT 8L L8LEZ TI0ZEOTOF IONYNHINIVA - THEAd £629 L6T09 11 WYIIIS TOMYD Y9 86" H9LCT
?8°GL L8LBZ 940ZS¥80F dd N¥dES - THENS £679 X049 od arvd
0L PZF L8L6Z 9L0ZESOTE Qidd - TAng $I0I B86 F9LZT
8L°6LT L8L6Z 01025010 SNOILOATE MIETID - THAL MNYE XAM £96TEL060T
9TTZ 78ZS5L XI SYTIY¥Q T¥d T5° %09
9TTZF8 X0€ ¢d aivd
SICL TS %09
TS ¥09 €TL6T ZT10258220% SHITAANS L6L0ZTOS0SIHANT IY¥D NA¥JIYM L6L0OZT09058d
9TTZ ¥8ZSL XI SYTITYQ TYd  ¥E£° 90T
9TTZF8 X0d o4 arvd
$I0L FE'S0T
FE'90T £ZL62 Z2T0Z5220F dAYIO/ESOE 6LL0TTO90Sd¥ANT IY¥D HEIYM 64L02T09084
0FLLE WN NOLYYI T¥d 97 6565¢
IAY @IOHTYHAH ISYHE FHF aivd
9¢ 661 PGLEZ 8T0ZLLYZY ZOVWMYHd ALYWNT 5101 92°6SG5¢E
00°08€e6G¢E PGLEZ LOEZLLYCH ONISAOH HIVKWNI YHINTD NOIINALEd OJYNOUTIYH TIDTA GZ0ZTOTT
ST¥88 WN NOILAVID Y9 Tz L0T
98F X0d "C°4d arvd
$I0L TZ-LOT
TZ°L0T £966¢ POTZS0T0F NOTLIDHTH LOTOTH#ANT YEAVAT AINOOD NOTINA LO9T9F
GT¥88 WN NOLXVTID T¥d 167201
98%F X0d "0 d arvd
$L0L 16°20T
T6°2Z0T £700€ 800ZL0TOV Q¥ 30d XYL JATVH IST 62T9FH#ANI HEAVET AINNOD NOINN 69T9F
ST¥88 WM MNOLAVID T9d  G9°8F1
98% X0€ "0°d aryd
5101 S9°8BY¥T
AUNowWY #04 wa3] 3auTT uotadrxossg SWEeN $OANT
9 :obeg SEDICANT DNIANYISLOO

0€:62:%T GS&/¥0/2T :23Rd





